AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

DUNHAM, AUKAMP & RHODES, PLC Certified Public Accountants Chantilly, Virginia

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page
Independent Auditor's Report	1-3
Management's Discussion and Analysis	4-8
Basic Financial Statements	
Government-wide Financial Statements	
Statement of Net Position	9
Statement of Activities	10
Fund Financial Statements	
Balance Sheet - Governmental Fund	11
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures, and	
Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Fund	12
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position	13
Notes to Financial Statements	14-32
Other Required and Supplementary Information	
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Net Position -	
Budget and Actual	33
Schedule of Changes in Assets and Liabilities - Fiduciary Funds	34
Schedule of Changes in the Commission's Net Pension Liability and	
Related Ratios	35
Schedule of Employer Contributions	36
Notes to Required Supplementary Information	37
Compliance Section	
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards	38
Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting	
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards	39-40
Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance for each Major Federal Program and on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by The Uniform Guidance	41-43
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs	44

Dunham, Aukamp & Rhodes, PLC

Certified Public Accountants

4443 Brookfield Corporate Drive, Suite 110 Chantilly, VA 20151

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Commissioners Southside Planning District Commission South Hill, Virginia

Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the fiduciary activities, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Southside Planning District Commission as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Commission's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the fiduciary activities, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Southside Planning District Commission as of June 30, 2024 and the respective changes in financial position for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the Specifications for Audits of Authorities, Boards, and Commissions, issued by the Auditor of Public Accounts of the Commonwealth of Virginia. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of Southside Planning District Commission and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Southside Planning District Commission's ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Phone: (703) 631-8940 FAX: (703) 631-8939

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards, we:

- Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
 or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
 examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
 that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
 effectiveness of Southside Planning District Commission's internal control. Accordingly, no such
 opinion is expressed.
- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
 accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
 financial statements.
- Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that
 raise substantial doubt about Southside Planning District Commission's ability to continue as a going
 concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information, the schedule of changes in the Commission's net pension liability and related ratios, and the schedule of employer's contributions be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise Southside Planning District Commission's basic financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, and the schedule of changes in assets and liabilities – fiduciary funds on page 34 are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other information comprises the management's discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison, introductory and statistical sections but does not include the basic financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinions on the basic financial statements do not cover the other information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the basic financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other information exists, we are required to describe it in our report.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 25, 2025, on our consideration of Southside Planning District Commission's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Southside Planning District Commission's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Southside Planning District Commission's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

of Theoles Ill

Certified Public Accountants

Chantilly, Virginia

March 25, 2025

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The management of Southside Planning District Commission presents the following discussion and analysis as an overview of Southside Planning District Commission's financial activities for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2024. We encourage readers to read this discussion and analysis in conjunction with the Commission's financial statements.

Financial Highlights for Fiscal Year 2024

Highlights for Government-Wide Financial Statements

- At the close of the current fiscal year, the net position of the Commission was \$562,639. This
 compares to the previous year when the net position was \$106,620. Of the current year amount,
 \$473,788 is unrestricted and may be used to meet the government's ongoing obligations to citizens,
 members, and creditors.
- For the fiscal year, program revenues of the Commission's governmental activities were \$7,481,529, expenses amounted to \$7,373,154 and operating grants and contributions were \$238,078. General revenues for the year were \$57,888, and the GASB 68 expense adjustment, was \$51,678. The Commission's total net position increased by \$456,019.

Highlights for Fund Financial Statements

 As of June 30, 2024, the Commission's Governmental Funds reported combined fund balances of \$1,562,006, an increase of \$405,618 in comparison with the prior year amount of \$1,156,388. All of the combined fund balances are available to meet the Commission's current and future needs.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This Comprehensive Annual Financial Report consists of two sections: financial and compliance.

- The financial section has three component parts management's discussion and analysis (this section), the basic financial statements, which include government-wide financial statements and fund financial statements, and required supplementary information.
- The compliance section is required under the provisions of Government Auditing Standards.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements report information about the Commission as a whole using accounting methods similar to those found in the private sector. They also report the Commission's net position and how they have changed during the fiscal year.

The Statement of Net Position - presents information on all of the Commission's assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, deferred inflows and net position. The Commission's net position can be used as one way to measure the Commission's financial health, or financial condition. Over time, increases or decreases in the net position can be one indicator of whether the Commission's financial condition is improving or deteriorating. Other nonfinancial factors will also need to be considered, such as changes in the Commission's administrative grant load and the condition of the Commission's fixed assets.

The Statement of Activities - presents information using the accrual basis accounting method and shows how the Commission's net position changed during the fiscal year. All of the current year's revenues and expenses are shown in the Statement of Activities, regardless of when cash is received or paid.

Fund Financial Statements

Traditional users of government financial statements will find the fund financial statements more familiar. These statements provide more detailed information about the Commission's most significant funds. Funds are used to ensure compliance with finance-related legal requirements and are used to keep track of specific sources of revenue and expenses for particular purposes. The Commission has two kinds of funds:

Governmental Funds - All of the Commission's basic services are included in Governmental Funds, which focus on (1) how cash and other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash flow in and out and (2) the balances remaining at year end that are available for spending. The Governmental Funds financial statements provide a detailed short-term view that helps the reader determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the Commission's programs. Because this information does not encompass the additional long-term focus of the government-wide statements, additional information is provided with the fund's financial statements to explain the relationship (or differences). The General Fund is the main operating account of the Commission. The Special Revenue Fund accounts for administrative grants from local sources. These are the only Governmental Funds of the Commission at this time.

Fiduciary Fund – The Commission serves as the fiscal agent for the GO Virginia Regional Council 3. The fiduciary fund accounts for the funds held for the operation of the program.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE COMMISSION AS A WHOLE

Statement of Net Position

The following table reflects the condensed Statement of Net Position as of June 30, 2024 and 2023:

2024	2023
\$1,761,468	\$1,235,638
88,851	73,294
\$ <u>1,850,319</u>	\$ <u>1,308,932</u>
\$ <u>162,703</u>	\$_110,810
\$ 260,417	\$ 123,371
1,140,802	1,078,861
\$ <u>1,401,219</u>	\$1,202,232
\$ 49,614	\$ <u>110,890</u>
\$ 88,851	\$ 73,294
473,788	33,326
\$ 562,639	\$ 106,620
	\$1,761,468 <u>88,851</u> \$1,850,319 \$_162,703 \$_260,417 1,140,802 \$1,401,219 \$_49,614 \$_88,851 _473,788

The net position of the total financial reporting entity best represents the entity's financial position. In the case of the Commission's reporting entity, the net position was \$562,639 at June 30, 2024. The largest portion of the reporting entity's assets, \$1,565,530, reflects cash and cash equivalents. The next largest portion of the reporting entity's net assets, \$195,938, reflects grants and contracts receivable. The largest portion of the Commission's liabilities is \$1,140,802 for the net pension liability.

Statement of Activities

The following table summarizes revenues and expenses from the Statement of Activities for the Commission for the years ending June 30, 2024 and 2023:

	2024	2023
Revenues		
Federal Government		
Grants and Contributions	\$4,853,827	\$7,084,590
Commonwealth of Virginia		
State Dues	89,971	89,971
Grants and Contributions	1,658,365	7.79
Local Sources		
Grants and Contributions	969,337	605,111
Member Dues	148,107	148,554
General Revenues	57,888	41,801
GASB 68 Pension Adjustment	51,678	A desire
Total Revenues	7,829,173	7,970,027
Expenses		
General Government Administration	7,373,154	8,002,382
GASB 68 Pension Adjustment		43,162
Total Expenses	7,373,154	8,045,544
Change in Net Position	456,019	(75,517)
Beginning Net Position	106,620	182,137
Ending Net Position	\$_562,639	\$ 106,620

Governmental activities increased the Commission's net position by \$456,019. Revenues from governmental activities totaled \$7,829,173 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024, compared to \$7,970,027 in fiscal year ended June 30, 2023. Revenue from federal grants comprise the largest source of these revenues, totaling \$4,853,827, or 62 percent, of all governmental activities' revenue.

The total cost of all governmental activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024 was \$7,373,154 compared to \$8,002,382 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023. General government administration continues to be the Commission's only program with all of the expenses going towards this function.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE COMMISSION'S FUNDS

As of June 30, 2024, the Commission's Governmental Funds reported a combined ending fund balance of \$1,562,006 an increase of \$405,618 in comparison with the prior year. 100 percent of the fund balance is available for spending at the government's discretion (unassigned fund balance).

The General Fund is the main operating fund of the Commission. At the end of the current fiscal year, the General Fund had an unassigned fund balance of \$1,562,006, an increase of \$405,618 in comparison with the prior year. The General Fund's liquidity can be measured by comparing total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Total fund balance represents 21 percent of that same amount.

BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

General Fund

The following table provides a comparison of original budget, final budget, and actual revenues and expenditures in the General Fund for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023:

	2024			2023		
	Original Budget	Final Budget	Actual	Original Budget	Final Budget	Actual
Revenues						
Federal	\$ 195,000	\$ 290,500	\$4,853,827	\$ 215,500	\$ 297,500	\$7,084,590
State	159,971	169,971	1,748,336	89,971	89,971	89,971
Local Sources						
Member Dues and Programs	899,607	1,266,619	1,117,444	916,854	1,107,209	753,665
Other	20,000	53,868	57,888	1,000	22,000	41,801
Total	1,274,578	1,780,958	7,777,495	1,223,325	1,516,680	7,970,027
Expenditures	1,191,098	1,191,098	7,373,154	1,050,997	1,095,557	8,002,382
Excess of Revenues over Expenditures	\$ 83,480	\$ 589,860	\$ <u>404,341</u>	\$ <u>172,328</u>	\$ <u>421,123</u>	\$ <u>(32,355)</u>

General Fund actual revenues were more than the final budget amounts by \$5,996,537, while actual expenditures were \$6,182,056 more than final budget amounts. Highlights of the comparison of final budget to actual figures for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024 include the following:

General Fund

Total Federal Grants – the actual federal grant income was \$4,853,827 more than budgeted due to VATI grant revenues received for vendors, not included in the budget. Total state grant revenue exceeded the budget by \$1,578,365 as a result of Go Virginia pass-through contract payments not budgeted. The related expenditures resulted in actual direct grant expenditures exceeding the budgeted amounts by \$6,229,804.

Total Local and Program Income – the actual local and program income was \$149,175 less than budgeted due to administrative contracts being deferred to FY24 because of unexpected completion time of contracts.

CAPITAL ASSETS

As of June 30, 2024, the Commission's net investment in capital assets totals \$88,851, which is net capital assets less related debt. This is an increase of \$15,557 over the previous fiscal year due to current year acquisitions of \$28,670 less depreciation taken on the assets in the amount of \$13,113. There is no related debt on any capital assets at this time.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET AND RATES

Presently, management of the Commission is not aware of any significant changes in conditions that would have a significant effect on the financial position of the Commission in the near future. The Commission has received increased funding for several projects in the next fiscal year.

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors, and creditors with a general overview of the Commission's finances and to demonstrate the Commission's accountability for the money it receives. Questions concerning this report or requests for additional information should be directed to Deborah Gosney, Executive Director, Southside Planning District Commission, 200 South Mecklenburg Avenue, South Hill, Virginia 23970, telephone (434) 447-7101.

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION JUNE 30, 2024

ASSETS		
Cash and cash equivalents	\$	1,565,530
Grants and contracts receivable		195,938
Total Current Assets		1,761,468
Capital assets		
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation		88,851
Total Assets	_	1,850,319
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES		
Differences between expected and actual experience		33,998
Pension contributions after the measurement date		128,705
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources		162,703
LIABILITIES		
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities		79,505
Accrued leave		60,955
Deferred revenue		119,957
Net pension liability	_	1,140,802
Total Liabilities	_	1,401,219
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES		
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on plan investments		49,164
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources		49,164
NET POSITION		
Net investment in capital assets		88,851
Unrestricted	-	473,788
Total Net Position	\$	562,639

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

						et (Expenses Changes in l		
Program Activities	Expenses	Charges for Services	G	perating rants and itributions	100	vernmental Activities		Total
Governmental Activities								
General government and administration	\$ 7,373,154	\$ 7,481,529	\$	238,078	\$	346,453	\$	346,453
Total Governmental Activities	7,373,154	7,481,529		238,078		346,453		346.453
	General revenu	es (expenses):						
	GASB 68 per	nsion adjustment				51,678		51,678
	Investment ea	arnings				57,888		57,888
	Total genera	l revenues (expen	ses)			109,566	\equiv	109,566
	Change in 1	net position				456,019		456,019
	Net position at I	peginning of year			_	106,620		106,620
	Net position at	end of year			\$	562,639	\$	562,639

BALANCE SHEET GOVERNMENTAL FUND JUNE 30, 2024

JUNE 30, 2024	Total Governmental Fund
ASSETS	
Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 1,565,530
Grants and contracts receivable	195,938
Total Current Assets	1,761,468
Total Assets	\$ 1,761,468
LIABILITIES	
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities	\$ 79,505
Deferred revenue	119,957
Total Liabilities	199,462
FUND BALANCE	
Unassigned	1,562,006
Total Fund Balance	1,562,006
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance	\$ 1,761,468
Reconciliation of fund balances on the balance sheet for governmental fund to net position of	
governmental activities on the statement of net position:	
Fund balances - total governmental fund	\$ 1,562,006
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of	
net assets are different because:	
Long-term assets and liabilities and related deferred items are not due and	
payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds	
Pension contributions after the measurement date	128.705
Compensated absences	(60,955)
Net pension liability	(1,140,802)
Differences between expected and actual experience	33,998
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on plan investments	(49,164)
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial	
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds.	88,851
Net Position of Governmental Activities	\$ 562,639

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE GOVERNMENTAL FUND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

REVENUE	
Grants and appropriations:	
Federal grants	\$ 4.853,827
State grants	1.748,336
Local and program income	1,117,444
Investment earnings	57,888
TOTAL REVENUES	7,777,495
EVENINTURES	
EXPENDITURES	c 220 004
Direct grant expenses	6,339,804
Salaries	496,935
Employee benefits and payroll taxes	377.376
Office expense	48,802
Capital outlay Space, utilities and occupancy costs	28,670
Equipment rental, maintenance and use	25,273
Commissioner's expense	12,950 9,195
Legal and auditing	
Insurance and bonding	7,948
Consumable supplies	6,864
Membership fees and dues	6,201
Auto operations and maintenance	5.080
Miscellaneous	3.019
Postage and freight	1.980
Publications and subscriptions	559
Officer's expense/stipend	544 500
Printing	177
TOTAL EXPENDITURES	7,371,877
	Vi
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE	405,618
FUND BALANCE - Beginning of year	1,156,388
FUND BALANCE - End of year	\$ 1.562,006
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues. Expenditures, and Changes	
Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities	
Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Government Funds	\$ 405,618
Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of current	
financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in the governmental funds -	
change in long-term annual leave payable.	(16,834)
Change in deferred outflows	51,893
Change in deferred inflows	61.726
Change in net pension liability	(61,941)
All capital outlays to purchase capital assets are reported in governmental funds as expenditures.	
However, for governmental activities those outlays are shown in the Statement of Net Position	
and allocated over their estimated useful lives as annual depreciation expense in the Statement	الحالم لياق
of Activities. This is the amount by which depreciation exceeds capital outlays in the period.	15,557
Change in net position reported on the Statement of Activities	\$ 456,019

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION JUNE 30, 2024

	Go Virginia Regional Council 3
ASSETS	
Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 66,563
Total Assets	66,563
LIABILITIES	
Amount held for others	66,563
Total Liabilities	66,563
NET POSITION	\$ -

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - Organization and Summary of Accounting Policies

The Southside Planning District Commission (the "Commission") operates as an agent for the Counties of Mecklenburg, Brunswick, and Halifax and the Towns of South Hill and South Boston for improving public safety, health and welfare, articulating community needs and developmental planning, and creating a unit of government to provide functions and services on a regional basis as provided for in Title 15.1, Chapter 34. Sections 15.1-1400 to 15.1-1452 of the Code of Virginia (1950), as amended.

The Commission has been officially designated by the U.S. Department of Commerce, Economic Development Administration, as the grantee of a revolving loan fund. The Commission has officially designated the Lake Country Development Corporation with the institutional and legal capacity to make and administer the revolving loans. The Commission and Lake Country Development Corporation maintain separate Boards of Directors and identities.

The financial statements of the Commission have been prepared in conformity with the specifications promulgated by the Auditor of Public Accounts (APA) of the Commonwealth of Virginia, and the accounting principles generally accepted in the United States as specified by the Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The following is a summary of significant accounting policies followed in the preparation of these financial statements:

- (a) The Financial Reporting Entity The Commission consists of various members who are appointed by and serve at the pleasure of the five member jurisdictions. The Commission is not a component unit of any of the participating governments. The Commission has no component units to be included in their financial statements at this time.
- (b) Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements The basic financial statements include both government-wide (based on the Commission as a whole) and fund financial statements. The focus is on both the Commission as a whole and the fund financial statements, including the major individual funds of the governmental category. Both the government-wide and fund financial statements categorize primary activities as governmental. In the government-wide Statement of Net Position, the governmental activities columns are presented on a consolidated basis, and are reflected, on a full accrual, economic resource basis, which incorporates long-term assets and receivables as well as long-term debt and obligations. Each presentation provides valuable information that can be analyzed and compared (between years and between governments) to enhance the usefulness of the information. The Commission generally first uses with donor restricted assets for expenses incurred for which both with donor restrictions and without donor restrictions assets are available. The Commission may defer the use of with donor restricted assets based on a review of the specific transaction.

The government-wide Statement of Activities reflects both the gross and net cost per functional category that are otherwise supported by general government revenues. The Statement of Activities reduces gross expenses by related program revenues, operating and capital grants, and contributions. The program revenues must be directly associated with the function (general government administration, health and welfare, etc.) or a business-type activity. Program revenues include: charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function, and grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operation or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Interest revenue and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported as general revenues.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

NOTE 1 - Organization and Summary of Accounting Policies (Continued)

(b) Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements (Continued)

In the fund financial statements, financial transactions and accounts of the Commission are organized on the basis of funds. The operation of each fund is considered to be an independent fiscal and separate accounting entity, with a self-balancing set of accounts recording cash and/or other financial resources together with all related liabilities and residual equities or balances, and changes therein, which are segregated for the purpose of carrying on specific activities or attaining certain objectives in accordance with special regulations, restrictions, or limitations. The fund statements are presented on a current financial resource and modified accrual basis of accounting.

This is the manner in which these funds are normally budgeted. Since the governmental fund statements are presented on a different measurement focus and basis of accounting than the government-wide statements' governmental column, a reconciliation is presented which briefly explains the adjustment necessary to reconcile the fund financial statements to the governmental column of the government-wide financial statements.

The Commission applies all GASB pronouncements as well as the Financial Accounting Standards Board pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989 unless these pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements.

The following is a brief description of the specific funds used by the Commission:

Governmental Funds

Governmental Funds account for the expendable financial resources, other than those accounted for in Proprietary and Fiduciary Funds. The individual Governmental Funds are:

General Fund – The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the Commission and accounts for all revenues and expenditures applicable to the general operations of the Commission which are not accounted for in other funds. Revenues are derived primarily from state and member dues. The General Fund is considered a major fund for financial reporting purposes.

Special Revenue Funds – The Special Revenue Fund accounts for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than those derived from special assessments, expendable trusts, or dedicated for major capital projects) requiring separate accounting because of legal or regulatory provisions or administrative action. The Special Revenue Fund is considered a major fund for financial reporting purposes.

Basis of Accounting - The accounting and reporting policies of the Commission relating to the accompanying basic financial conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America applicable to state and local governments.

Fiduciary Fund

Go Virginia Agency Fund – This fund accounts for the increases and decreases of the funds held for the GO Virginia Regional Council 3.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

NOTE 1 - Organization and Summary of Accounting Policies (Continued)

(b) Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements (Continued)

The government-wide Statements of Net Position and Statements of Activities are accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. With this measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of these activities are included on the Statement of Net Position.

The fund financial statements of the General Fund are maintained and reported on the accrual basis of accounting using the current financial resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities generally are included on the balance sheet in the fund statements. Under the accrual method of accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which they become measurable and available. Federal and State reimbursement-type grants are recorded as revenue when related eligible expenditures are incurred. Expenditures are recorded when the fund liability is incurred.

- (c) Budgets and Budgetary Accounting The Commission's Board annually adopts budgets for the various funds of the primary government. The following procedures are used by the Commission in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements:
 - The Executive Director submits to the Executive Committee a proposed operating budget commencing the following July 1. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them.
 - 2. Prior to June 30, the Executive Committee adopts the budget.
 - 3. Only the Executive Committee can revise the budget for each department or category.
 - 4. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management device during the year.
 - 5. All budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles.
 - Appropriations lapse on June 30. Contracts that carry over more than one year can be rebudgeted.
 - Budget data presented in the accompanying financial statements consists of the original budget and the revised budget as of June 30, 2024, as adopted, appropriated, and legally amended.
- (d) Revenue Recognition Intergovernmental revenues, consisting primarily of federal, state, local and other grants for the purpose of funding specific expenditures, are recognized when earned. Contributions of the member governments are based on population and are assessed annually. The Commission recognizes a liability for funds received in excess of project expenditures.
- (e) Cash and Cash Equivalents Cash and cash equivalents include investments in highly liquid debt instruments with a maturity of three months or less, excluding amounts whose use is limited by the Commission's Board designation or other arrangements under trust agreements with third-party payers.
- (f) Investments Investments with readily determinable fair values are measured at fair value in the statement of financial position. Investment income or loss is included in the statement of activities unless the income or loss in restricted by donor or law.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

NOTE 1 - Organization and Summary of Accounting Policies (Continued)

- (g) Accounts Receivable Accounts receivable are reported at their gross value when earned as the underlying exchange transaction occurs. Receivables related to non-exchange transactions are recognized when their eligibility requirements have been met. Receivables are reduced by the estimated portion that is expected to be uncollectible based on collection history and current information regarding the credit worthiness of the debtors. When continued collection activity results in receipts of amounts previously written off, revenue is recognized for the amount collected. Management considers all of the receivables collectible at June 30, 2024, and no allowance for doubtful accounts has been provided.
- (h) Capital Assets Capital outlays are recorded as expenditures of the Governmental Funds and as assets in the government-wide financial statements to the extent the Commission's capitalization threshold of \$2,000 is met. All capital assets are valued at historical cost.

Depreciation is recorded on general fixed assets on a government-wide basis using the straight-line method and the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings and improvements 7 to 39 years Furniture and other equipment 3 to 5 years

Maintenance, repairs, and minor equipment are charged to operations when incurred. Expenses that materially change capacities or extend useful lives are capitalized. Upon sale or retirement of furniture, vehicles, or equipment, the cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the respective accounts and any resulting gain or loss is included in the results of operations.

(i) Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources – The Commission reports deferred outflows of resources on its statement of net position. Deferred outflows of resources represent a consumption of net position that applies to future periods and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until the applicable period.

The Commission reports deferred inflows of resources on its statement of net position. Deferred inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net position that applies to future periods and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until a future period.

- (j) Management Estimates The presentation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
- (k) Advertising Costs Advertising costs are expensed as incurred.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

NOTE 2 - Cash and Investments

Deposits - All cash of the Commission is maintained in accounts collateralized in accordance with the Virginia Security for Public Deposits Act (the "Act"), Section 2.2-4400 et seq. of the Code of Virginia or covered by Federal Depository Insurance. Under the Act, banks holding public deposits in excess of the amounts insured by FDIC must pledge collateral in the amount of 50% of excess deposits to a collateral pool in the name of the State Treasury Board. Savings and loan institutions are required to collateralize 100% of deposits in excess of FDIC limits. The State Treasury Board of responsible for monitoring compliance with the collateralization and reporting requirements of the Act and for notifying local governments of compliance by banks and savings and loans. If any member financial institution fails, the entire collateral becomes available to satisfy the claims of the Commission. If the value of the pool's collateral is inadequate to cover a loss, additional amounts would be assessed on a pro-rata basis to the members of the pool. Therefore, these deposits are considered collateralized, and, as a result, are considered insured.

Investments - Statutes authorize local governments and other public bodies to invest in obligations of the United States or agencies thereof, obligations of the Commonwealth of Virginia or political subdivisions thereof, obligations of the International Bank for Reconstruction and Development (World Bank), the Asian Development Bank, the African Development Bank, "prime quality" commercial paper and certain corporate notes, banker's acceptances, repurchase agreements, and the State Treasurer's Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP).

As of June 30, 2024, the Commission had an investment of \$30,546 in a mutual company as a result of the demutualization of an insurance policy, with a cost basis of \$8,686. Investments are recorded at fair market value based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets (level 1 inputs).

Investment income for the year ended June 30, 2024 consisted of the following:

Interest and dividends	\$56,579
Gain on sale of investments	_1,309
	\$57,888

NOTE 3 - Capital Assets

A summary of property and equipment as of June 30, 2024 is as follows:

	Balance July 1, 2023	Additions	Disposals	Balance June 30, 2024
Equipment	\$115,536	\$ -	\$ -	\$115,536
Leasehold Improvements	63,594	28,670	-	92,264
Accumulated Depreciation	(105,836)	(13,113)		(118,949)
Net	\$ 73,294	\$ 15,557	\$	\$ 88,851

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

NOTE 4 - Pension Plan

The Virginia Retirement System (VRS) Political Subdivision Retirement Plan is a multi-employer, agent plan. For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Political Subdivision's Retirement Plan and the additions to/deductions from the Political Subdivision's Retirement Plan's net fiduciary position have been determined on the same basis as they were reported by the Virginia Retirement System (VRS). For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

Plan Description

All full-time, salaried permanent employees of the Commission are automatically covered by VRS Retirement Plan upon employment. This plan is administered by the Virginia Retirement System (the System) along with plans for other employer groups in the Commonwealth of Virginia. Members earn one month of service credit for each month they are employed and for which they and their employer pay contributions to VRS. Members are eligible to purchase prior service, based on specific criteria a defined in the *Code of Virginia*, as amended. Eligible prior service that may be purchased includes prior public service, active military service, certain periods of leave, and previously refunded service.

The System administers three different benefit structures for covered employees – Plan 1, Plan 2, and Hybrid. Each of these benefit structures has different eligibility criteria. The specific information for each plan and the eligibility for covered groups within each plan are set out in the table below:

PLAN 1	PLAN 2	HYBRID RETIREMENT PLAN
About Plan 1 Plan 1 is a defined benefit plan. The retirement benefit is based on a member's age, service credit and average final compensation at retirement using a formula.	About Plan 2 Same as Plan 1	About the Hybrid Retirement Plan The Hybrid Retirement Plan combines the features of a defined benefit plan and a defined contribution plan. • The defined benefit is based on a member's age, service credit and average final compensation at retirement using a formula. • The benefit from the defined contribution component of the plan depends on the member and employer contributions made to the plan and the investment performance of those contributions. • In addition to the monthly benefit payment payable from the defined benefit plan at retirement, a member may start receiving distributions from the balance in the defined contributions, investment gains or losses, and any required fees.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

NOTE 4 - Pension Plan (Continued)

Eligible Members

Employees are in Plan 1 if their membership date is before July 1, 2010, and they were vested as of January 1, 2013, and they have not taken a refund.

Hybrid Opt-In Election

VRS non-hazardous duty covered Plan 1 members were allowed to make an irrevocable decision to opt into the Hybrid Retirement Plan during a special election window held January 1 through April 30, 2014.

The Hybrid Retirement Plan's effective date for eligible Plan 1 members who opted in was July 1, 2014.

If eligible deferred members returned to work during the election window, they were also eligible to opt into the Hybrid Retirement Plan.

Members who were eligible for an optional retirement plan (ORP) and had prior service under Plan I were not eligible to elect the Hybrid Retirement Plan and remain as Plan I or ORP.

Retirement Contributions

Members contribute up to 5% of their compensation each month to their member contribution account through a pretax salary reduction. Member contributions are tax-deferred until they are withdrawn as part of retirement benefit or as a refund. The employer makes a separate actuarially determined contribution to VRS for all covered employees. VRS invests both member and employer contributions to provide funding for the future benefit payment.

Eligible Members

Employees are in Plan 2 if their membership date is on or after July 1, 2010, or their membership date is before July 1, 2010, and they were not vested as of January 1, 2013.

Hybrid Opt-In Election

Eligible Plan 2 members were allowed to make an irrevocable decision to opt into the Hybrid Retirement Plan during a special election window held January 1 through April 30, 2014.

The Hybrid Retirement Plan's effective date for eligible Plan 2 members who opted in was July 1, 2014.

If eligible deferred members returned to work during the election window, they were also eligible to opt into the Hybrid Retirement plan.

Members who were eligible for an optional retirement plan (ORP) and have prior service under Plan 2 were not eligible to elect the Hybrid Retirement Plan and remain as Plan 2 or ORP.

Retirement Contributions

Same as Plan 1.

Eligible Members

Employees are in the Hybrid Retirement Plan if their membership date is on or after January 1, 2014. This includes:

- Political subdivision employees*
- Members in Plan 1 or Plan 2 who elected to opt into the plan during the election window held January 1-April 30, 2014; the plan's effective date for opt-in members was July 1, 2014.

* Non-Eligible Members

Some employees are not eligible to participate in the Hybrid Retirement Plan. They include:

 Political subdivision employees who are covered by enhanced benefits for hazardous duty employees.

Those employees eligible for an optional retirement plan (ORP) must elect the ORP plan or the Hybrid Retirement Plan. If these members have prior service under Plan 1 or Plan 2, they are not eligible to elect the Hybrid Retirement Plan and must select Plan 1 or Plan 2 (as applicable) or ORP.

Retirement Contributions

A member's retirement benefit is funded through mandatory and voluntary contributions made by the member and the employer to both the defined benefit and the defined contribution components of the plan. Mandatory contributions are based on a percentage of the employee's creditable compensation and are required from both the member and the employer. Additionally, members may choose to make voluntary contributions to the defined contribution component of the plan. and the employer is requited to match those voluntary contributions according to specified percentages.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

NOTE 4 - Pension Plan (Continued)

Service Credit	Service Credit	Service Credit
Service credit includes active service. Members earn service credit for each month they are employed in a covered position. It also may include credit for prior service the member has purchased or additional service credit the member was granted. A member's total service credit is one of the factors used to determine their eligibility for retirement and to calculate their retirement benefit. It also may count toward eligibility for the health insurance credit in retirement, if the employer offers the health insurance credit.	Same as Plan 1.	Defined Benefit Component: Under the defined benefit component of the plan, service credit includes active service. Members earn service credit for each month they are employed in a covered position. It also may include credit for prior service the member has purchased or additional service credit the member was granted. A member's total service credit is one of the factors used to determine their eligibility for retirement and to calculate their retirement benefit. It also may count toward eligibility for the health insurance credit in retirement, if the employer offers the health insurance credit. Defined Contributions Component: Under the defined contribution component, service credit is used to determine vesting for the
Vesting Vesting is the minimum length of service a member needs to qualify for a future retirement benefit. Members become vested when they have at least five years (60 months) of service credit. Vesting means members are eligible to qualify for retirement if they meet the age and service requirements for their plan. Members also must be vested to receive a full refund of their member contribution account balance if they leave employment and request a refund. Members are always 100% vested in the contributions that they make.	Vesting Same as Plan 1.	Vesting Defined Benefit Component: Defined benefit vesting is the minimum length of service a member needs to qualify for a future retirement benefit. Members are vested under the defined benefit component of the Hybrid Retirement Plan when they reach five years (60 months) of service credit. Plan 1 or Plan 2 members with at least five years (60 months) of service credit who opted into the Hybrid Plan remain vested in the defined benefit component. Defined Contributions Component: Defined Contribution vesting refers to the minimum length of service a member needs to be eligible to withdraw the employer contributions from the defined contribution component of the plan. Members are always 100% vested in the contributions that they make. Upon retirement or leaving covered employment, a member is eligible to withdraw a percentage of employer contributions to the defined contribution component of the plan, based on service.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

NOTE 4 - Pension Plan (Continued)

		Vesting (continued) After two years, a member is 50% vested and may withdraw 50% of employer contributions. After three years, a member is 75% vested and may withdraw 75% of employer contributions. After four years or more, a member is 100% vested and may withdraw 100% of employer contributions. Distribution not required, except as governed by law.
Calculating the Benefit The basic benefit is determined using the average final compensation, service credit and plan multiplier. An early retirement reduction is applied to this amount if the member is retiring with a reduced benefit. In cases where the member has elected an optional form of retirement payment, an option factor specific to the option chosen is then applied.	Calculating the Benefit See definition under Plan 1.	Calculating the Benefit Defined Benefit Component: See definition under Plan 1. Defined Contribution Component: The benefit is based on contributions made by the member and any matching contributions made by the employer, plus net investment earnings on those contributions.
Average Final Compensation A member's average final compensation is the average of the 36 consecutive months of highest compensation as a covered employee.	Average Final Compensation A member's average final compensation is the average of the 60 consecutive months of highest compensation as a covered employee.	Average Final Compensation Same as Plan 2. It is used in the retirement formula for the defined benefit component of the plan.
Service Retirement Multiplier VRS: The retirement multiplier is a factor used in the formula to determine a final retirement benefit. The retirement multiplier for non-hazardous duty members is 1.70%. Sheriffs and regional jail superintendents: The retirement multiplier for sheriffs and regional jail superintendents is 1.85%. Political subdivision hazardous duty	Service Retirement Multiplier VRS: Same as Plan 1 for service earned, purchased or granted prior to January 1, 2013. For non-hazardous duty members the retirement multiplier is 1.65% for service credit earned, purchased or granted on or after January 1, 2013. Sheriffs and regional jail superintendents: Same as Plan 1.	Service Retirement Multiplier Defined Benefit Component: VRS: The retirement multiplier for the defined benefit component is 1.00%. For members who opted into the Hybrid Retirement Plan from Plan 1 or Plan 2, the applicable multipliers for those plans will be used to calculate the retirement benefit for service credited in those plans. Sheriffs and regional jail superintendents: Not applicable
employees: The retirement multiplier of eligible political subdivision hazardous duty employees other than sheriffs and regional jail superintendents is 1.70% or 1.85% as elected by the employer.	Political subdivision hazardous duty employees: Same as Plan 1.	Political subdivision hazardous duty employees: Not applicable. Defined Contribution Component: Not applicable. 22

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

NOTE 4 - Pension Plan (Continued)

Normal Retirement Age VRS: Age 65.	Normal Retirement Age VRS: Normal Social Security retirement age.	Normal Retirement Age <u>Defined Benefit Component:</u> VRS: Same as Plan 2.
Political subdivision hazardous duty employees: Age 60.	Political subdivision hazardous duty employees: Same as Plan 1.	Political subdivision hazardous duty employees: Not applicable.
		Defined Contribution Component: Members are eligible to receive distributions upon leaving employment, subject to restrictions.
Earliest Unreduced Retirement Eligibility VRS: Age 65 with at least five years (60 months) of service credit or at age 50 with at least 30 years of service credit.	Earliest Unreduced Retirement Eligibility VRS: Normal Social Security retirement age with at least five years (60 months) of service credit or when their age and service credit equal 90.	Earliest Unreduced Retirement Eligibility <u>Defined Benefit Component:</u> VRS: Normal Social Security retirement age and have at least five years (60 months) of service credit owhen their age and service credit equal 90. Political subdivision hazardous duty
Political subdivision hazardous duty employees: Age 60 with at least five years (60 months) of service credit or at age 50 with at least 25 years of service credit.	Political subdivision hazardous duty employees: Same as Plan 1.	employees: Not applicable. Defined Contribution Component: Members are eligible to receive distributions upon leaving employment, subject to restrictions
Earliest Reduced Retirement Eligibility VRS: Age 55 with at least five years (60 months) of creditable service or at age 50 with at least 10 years of service credit. Political subdivision hazardous duty employees: 50 with at least five years of service credit.	Earliest Reduced Retirement Eligibility VRS: Age 60 with at least five years (60 months) of service credit. Political subdivision hazardous duty employees: Same as Plan 1.	Earliest Reduced Retirement Eligibility Defined Benefit Component: VRS: Age 60 with at least five years (60 months) of service credit. Political subdivision hazardous duty employees: Not applicable. Defined Contribution Component: Members are eligible to receive distributions upon leaving employment, subject to restrictions
Cost-of-Living Adjustment (COLA) in Retirement The Cost-of-Living Adjustment (COLA) matches the first 3% increase in the Consumer Price Index for all Urban Consumers (CPI-U) and half of any additional increase (up to 4%) up to a maximum COLA of 5%. Eligibility:	Cost-of-Living Adjustment (COLA) in Retirement The Cost-of-Living Adjustment (COLA) matches the first 2% increase in the CPI-U and half of any additional increase (up to 2%), for a maximum COLA of 3%.	Cost-of-Living Adjustment (COLA) in Retirement Defined Benefit Component: Same as Plan 2. Defined Contribution Component: Not applicable.
For members who retire with an unreduced benefit or with a reduced benefit with at least 20 years of service credit, the COLA will go into effect on July 1 after one full calendar year from the retirement date.	Eligibility: Same as Plan 1.	Eligibility: Same as Plan 1 and Plan 2.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

NOTE 4 - Pension Plan (Continued)

Cost-of-Living Adjustment (COLA) in Retirement (continued) For members who retire with a reduced benefit and who have less than 20 years of service credit, the COLA will go into effect on July 1 after one calendar year following	Cost-of-Living Adjustment (COLA) in Retirement (continued)	Cost-of-Living Adjustment (COLA) in Retirement (continued)
Exceptions to COLA Effective Dates: The COLA is effective July 1 following one full calendar year (January 1 to December 31) under any of the following circumstances: • The member is within five years of qualifying for an unreduced retirement benefit as of January 1, 2013. • The member retires on disability. • The member retires directly from short-term to long-term disability. • The member is involuntarily separated from employment for causes other than job performance or misconduct and is eligible to retire under the Workforce Transition Act or the Transitional Benefits Program. • The member dies in service and the member's survivor or beneficiary is eligible for a monthly death-in-service benefit. • The COLA will go into effect on July 1 following one full calendar year (January 1 to December 31) from the date the monthly benefit begins.	Exceptions to COLA Effective Dates: Same as Plan 1.	Exceptions to COLA Effective Dates: Same as Plan 1 and Plan 2.
Disability Coverage Members who are eligible to be considered for disability retirement and retire on disability, the retirement multiplier is 1.70% on all service, regardless of when it was earned, purchased or granted.	Disability Coverage Members who are eligible to be considered for disability retirement and retire on disability, the retirement multiplier is 1.65% on all service, regardless of when it was earned, purchased or granted.	Disability Coverage Employees of political subdivisions (including Plan 1 and Plan 2 opt-ins) participate in the Virginia Local Disability Program (VLDP) unless their local governing body provides an employer-paid comparable program for its members. Hybrid members (including Plan 1 and Plan 2

opt-ins) covered under VLDP are subject to a one-year waiting period before becoming eligible for non-work-related disability benefits.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

NOTE 4 - Pension Plan (Continued)

Purchase of Prior Service Members may be eligible to purchase service from previous public employment, active duty military, an eligible period of leave or VRS refunded service as service credit in their plan. Prior service credit counts toward	Purchase of Prior Service Same as Plan 1.	Purchase of Prior Service Defined Benefit Component: Same as Plan 1, with the following exceptions: Hybrid Retirement Plan members are ineligible for ported service.
vesting, eligibility for retirement and the health insurance credit. Only active members are eligible to purchase prior service. When buying service, members must purchase their most recent period of service first. Members also may be eligible to purchase periods of leave without pay.		Defined Contribution Component: Not applicable.

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms

As of the June 30, 2022 actuarial valuation, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms of the pension plan:

		Number
Inactive Members or Their Beneficiaries Currently Receiving Benefits		6
Inactive Members		
Vested inactive members	6	
Non-vested inactive members	8	
Inactive members active elsewhere in VRS	5	
Total Inactive Members	38 21	19
Active Members		8
Total covered employees		_33

Contributions

The contribution requirement for active employees is governed by §51.1-145 of the *Code of Virginia*, as amended, but may be impacted as a result of funding options provided to political subdivisions by the Virginia General Assembly. Employees are required to contribute 5.00% of their compensation toward their retirement.

The Commission's contractually required contribution rate for the year ended June 30, 2024 was 20.51% of covered employee compensation. This rate was based on an actuarially determined rate from an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2021.

This rate, when combined with employee contributions, was expected to finance the costs of benefits earned by employee during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. Contributions to the pension plan from the Commission were \$128,705 and \$110,810 for the years ended June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023, respectively.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

NOTE 4 - Pension Plan (Continued)

Net Pension Liability

The net pension liability (NPL) is calculated separately for each employer and represents that particular employer's total pension liability determined in accordance with GASB Statement No. 68, less that employer's fiduciary net position. For the Commission, the net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2023. The total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation performed as of June 30, 2022 rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2023.

Actuarial Assumptions - General Employees

The total pension liability for General Employees in the Political Subdivision's Retirement Plan was based on an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2022, using the Entry Age Normal actuarial cost method and the following assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement and rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2023.

Inflation 2.5%

Salary increases, including Inflation 3.5% - 5.35%

Investment rate of return 6.75%, net of pension plan investment expense,

including inflation*

Mortality rates:

Largest 10 - Non-Hazardous Duty: 20% of deaths are assumed to be service related

Pre-Retirement:

Pub-2010 Amount Weighted Safety Employee Rates projected generationally; 95% of rates for males; 105% of rates for females set forwards 2 years.

Post-Retirement:

Pub-2010 Amount Weighted Safety Employee Rates projected generationally; 110% of rates for males; 105% of rates for females set forward 3 years.

Post-Disablement:

Pub-2010 amount Weighted General Disabled Rates projected generationally; 95% of rates for males set back 3 years; 90% of rates for females set back 3 years.

Beneficiaries and Survivors:

Pub-2010 Amount Weighted Safety Contingent Annuitant Rates projected generationally; 110% of rates for males and females set forward 2 years.

Mortality Improvement:

Rates projected generationally with Modified MP-2020 Improvement Scale that is 75% of the MP-2020 rates.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

NOTE 4 - Pension Plan (Continued)

Mortality rates (continued):

All Others (Non 10 Largest) - Non-Hazardous Duty: 15% of deaths are assumed to be service related

Pre-Retirement:

Pub-2010 Amount Weighted Safety Employee Rates projected generationally; 95% of rates for males; 105% of rates for females set forwards 2 years.

Post-Retirement:

Pub-2010 Amount Weighted Safety Healthy Retiree projected generationally; 110% of rates for males; 105% of rates for females set forward 3 years.

Post-Disablement:

Pub-2010 Amount Weighted General Disabled Rates projected generationally; 95% of rates for males set back 3 years; 90% for females set back 3 years.

Beneficiaries and Survivors:

Pub-2010 Amount Weighted Safety Contingent Annuitant Rates projected generationally; 110% of rates for males and females set forward 2 years.

Mortality Improvement:

Rates projected generationally with Modified MP-2020 Improvement Scale that is 75% of the MP-2020 rates.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2022 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience study for the period from July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2020, except the change in the discount rate, which was based on VRS Board action effective as of July 1, 2021. Changes to the actuarial assumptions as a result of the experience study and VRS Board action are as follows:

Largest 10 - Non-Hazardous Duty:

Mortality Rates (Pre-retirement, post- retirement healthy and disabled	Updates to PUB2010 public sector mortality tables. For future mortality improvements, replace load with a modified Mortality Improvement Scale MP-2020.	
Retirement Rates	Adjusted rates to better fit experience for Plan 1; set separate rates based on experience for Plan 2/ Hybrid; changed final retirement age	
Withdrawal Rates	Adjusted rates to better fit experience at each year age and service through 9 years of service	
Disability Rates	No change	
Salary Scale	No change	
Line of Duty Disability	No change	
Discount Rate	No change	

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

NOTE 4 - Pension Plans (Continued)

All Other (Non 10 Largest) - Non-Hazardous Duty:

Mortality Rates (Pre-retirement, post- retirement healthy and disabled	Update to PUB2010 public sector mortality tables. For future mortality improvements, replace load with a modified Mortality Improvement Scale MP-2020.	
Retirement Rates	Adjusted rates to better fit experience for Plan 1; set separate rates based on experience for Plan 2/ Hybrid; changed final retirement age	
Withdrawal Rates	Adjusted rates to better fit experience at each year age and service through 9 years of service	
Disability Rates	No change	
Salary Scale	No change	
Line of Duty Disability	No change	
Discount Rate	No change	

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

The long-term expected rate of return on pension System investments was determined using a lognormal distribution analysis in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension System investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target asset allocation and best estimate of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:

Asset Class (Strategy)	Target Allocation	Arithmetic Long-Term Expected Rate of Return	Weighted Average Long- Term Expected Rate of Return
Public Equity	34.00%	6.14%	2.09%
Fixed Income	15.00%	2.56%	0.38%
Credit Strategies	14.00%	5.60%	0.78%
Real Assets	14.00%	5.02%	0.70%
Private Equity	16.00%	9.17%	1.47%
MAPS-Multi-Asset Public Strategies	4.00%	4.50%	0.18%
PIP-Private Investment Partnership	2.00%	7.18%	0.14%
Cash	1.00%	1.20%	0.01%
Total	100.00%		5.75%
	Inflation		2.50%
* Expected arithmetic	e nominal return		8.25%

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

NOTE 4 - Pension Plans (Continued)

The above allocation provides a one-year expected return 8.25%. However, one-year returns do not take into account the volatility present in each of the asset classes. In setting the long-term expected return for the System, stochastic projections are employed to model future returns under various economic conditions. The results provide a range of returns over various time periods that ultimately provide a median return of 7.14%, including expected inflation of 2.50%. On June 15, 2023, the VRS Board elected a long-term rate of 6.75% which is roughly at the 45th percentile of expected long-term results of the VRS fund asset allocation at that time, providing a median return of 7.14%, including expected inflation of 2.50%.

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.75%. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that System member contributions will be made per the VRS Statutes and the employer contributions will be made in accordance with the VRS funding policy at rates equal to the difference between actuarially determined contribution rates adopted by the VRS Board of Trustees and the member rate. Consistent with the phased-in funding provided by the General Assembly for state and teacher employer contributions; political subdivisions were also provided with an opportunity to use an alternate employer contribution rate. For the year ended June 30, 2023, the alternate rate was the employer contribution rate used in FY2012 or 100% of the actuarially determined employer contribution rate from the June 30, 2021, actuarial valuations, whichever was greater. From July 1, 2022 on, participating employers are assumed to continue 100% of the actuarially determined contribution rates. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Changes in Net Pension Liability:

	Total Pension Liability (a)	Plan Fiduciary Net Position (b)	Net Pension Liability (a)-(b)
Balances at June 30, 2022	\$4,293,772	\$3,214,911	\$1,078,861
Changes for the year:			
Service cost	49,044	1 21	49,044
Interest	286,931		286,931
Changes of assumptions			V. 161 12
Differences between expected and actual experience	69,412	en (4)	(69,412)
Contributions - employer	100	111,160	(111,160)
Contributions – employee	- ÷	26,845	(26,845)
Net investment income		207,417	207,417
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions	(183,981)	(183,981)	
Administrative expense		(2,060)	2,060
Other changes		84	(84)
Net changes	221,406	159,465	61,941
Balances at June 30, 2023	\$ <u>4,515,178</u>	\$3,374,376	\$1,140,802

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

NOTE 4 - Pension Plans (Continued)

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the net pension liability of the Commission using the discount rate of 6.75%, as well as what the Commission's net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (5.75%) or one percentage point higher (7.75%) than the current rate:

	1% Decrease (5.75%)	Current Discount Rate (6.75%)	1% Increase (7.75%)
Commission's Net Pension Liability	\$1,773,034	\$1,140,802	\$632,069

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

For the year ended June 30, 2024, the Commission recognized pension expense of \$77,377. At June 30, 2024, the Commission reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

	Deferred Outflows of Resources	Deferred Inflows of Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience	\$ 33,998	\$ -
Change in assumptions	4	-
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on plan investments		49,164
Employer contributions subsequent to the Measurement Date	128,705	
Total	\$162,703	\$49,164

\$128,705 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from Commission's contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2025. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ending June 30,	
2025	\$ (905)
2026	(62,089)
2027	46,233
2028	1,595
2029	1112
Thereafter	19

Pension Plan Data

Information about the VRS Political Subdivision Retirement Plan is also available in the separately issued VRS 2022 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR). A copy of the 2023 VRS CAFR may be downloaded from the VRS website at varetire.org/Pdf/Publications/2022-annual-report.pdf, or by writing to the System's Chief Financial Officer at P.O. Box 2500, Richmond, VA, 23218-2500.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

NOTE 5 - Compensated Absences

Each Commission employee earns vacation under a formula approved by its Board of Directors as described in the employee handbook. Sick leave is earned at the rate of ten hours per completed month of service. A maximum of 42 accumulated days of vacation may be carried from one year to the next, depending upon years of service. A maximum of 120 accumulated days of sick leave may be carried from one year to the next for employees with one to twenty years of service, and 150 accumulated days of sick leave may be carried from one year to the next for employees with over twenty years of service. Accrued vacation may be paid if not used prior to termination up to a maximum of 36 days. Accrued sick leave is not paid upon termination. The Commission has outstanding compensated absences totaling \$54,980 in the governmental activities.

NOTE 6 - Indirect Costs

Indirect costs, which support all projects, are allocated based on the ratio of the individual project's direct salaries and fringe benefits to total direct salaries and fringe benefits. The indirect cost rate for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024 was calculated as follows:

Indirect costs	\$ <u>320,682</u>	
Total direct salaries and		
fringe benefits	\$712,669	= 45.0%

The following indirect costs have been allocated to projects:

Salaries	\$102,896
Fringe benefits	75,579
Office expense	48,802
Space and occupancy costs	25,273
Depreciation	13,113
Equipment rental and maintenance	12,950
Commission member's expense	9,195
Audit and accounting	7,800
Insurance and bonding	6,864
Consumable supplies	6,201
Membership dues	5,080
Auto and travel	3,019
Miscellaneous	1,982
Printing and publications	721
Postage and freight	559
Officer's expense	500
Legal	148
Total Indirect Costs	\$320,682

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

NOTE 7 - Fringe Benefit Allocation

Fringe benefit expense is allocated using the percentage of benefits to total non-leave salaries. The fringe benefit rate for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024 is calculated as follows:

Fringe benefit expense	\$377,375	
Total non-leave salaries	\$513,739	= 73.45%

Components of fringe benefit expense for the year ended June 30, 2024 are shown below:

Retirement	\$136,750
Employee leave	106,564
Health, disability and life insurance	91,867
Payroll taxes	42,194
Total Fringe Benefits	\$377,375

NOTE 8 - Lease Commitments

The Commission has a lease for its facilities at 200 South Mecklenburg Avenue, South Hill, Virginia. The premises are leased from the Lake Country Development Corporation. No rent was charged for the year ended June 30, 2024.

NOTE 9 - Contingent Liabilities

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor agencies, principally the Federal government. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time although the government expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial. At June 30, 2024, there were no matters of litigation involving the Commission which would materially affect the Commission's financial position should any court decision or pending matter not be favorable to the Commission.

NOTE 10 - Surety Bond Information

A public employee blanket bond through Virginia Risk Sharing Association amounting to \$60,000 was in force and expires June 30, 2024.

NOTE 11 - Evaluation of Subsequent Events

The Commission has evaluated subsequent events through March 25, 2025, the date which the financial statements were available to be issued.

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION -BUDGET AND ACTUAL FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

	ORIGINAL BUDGET	AMENDED BUDGET	ACTUAL	FA	ARIANCE VORABLE (AVORABLE)
REVENUE		10000			
Grants and appropriations:					
Federal grants	\$ 195,000	\$ 290,500	\$ 4,853,827	\$	4,563,327
State grants	159,971	169,971	1,748,336		1,578,365
Local and program income	899,607	1,266,619	1,117.444		(149, 175)
Other revenue:					
Investment earnings	20,000	53,868	57,888		4,020
TOTAL REVENUES	1,274,578	1,780,958	7,777,495		5,996,537
EXPENDITURES					
Current Operating:					
Direct grant expenses	110,000	110,000	6,339,804		(6.229,804)
Salaries	533,479	533,479	513,769		19,710
Employee benefits and payroll taxes	379,619	379,619	377.376		2,243
Office expense	35,000	35,000	48,802		(13,802)
Space, utilities and occupancy costs	25,000	25,000	25,273		(273)
Depreciation	12,500	12.500	13,113		(613)
Equipment rental, maintenance and use	15,000	15,000	12,950		2,050
Commissioner's expense	10,000	10,000	9,195		805
Legal and auditing	23,500	23,500	7,948		15,552
Insurance and bonding	7,000	7,000	6,864		136
Consumable supplies	7,000	7,000	6,201		799
Membership fees and dues	5,000	5,000	4,998		2
Auto operations and maintenance	5,000	5,000	2,760		2,240
Miscellaneous	-	L.*	1,169		(1.169)
Pubic relations	1,000	1,000	811		189
Postage and freight	2,500	2,500	559		1.941
Publications and subscriptions	500	500	544		(44)
Officer's expense/stipend	500	500	500		3
Travel	500	500	259		241
Printing	2,500	2,500	177		2,323
Training, seminars, workshops and conferences	500	500	82		418
Contractual staff	15,000	15,000			15,000
TOTAL EXPENDITURES	1,191,098	1,191,098	7,373,154	-	(6,182,056)
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER					
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES	\$ 83,480	\$ 589,860	404,341	\$	(185,519)
NET POSITION - Beginning of year			106,620		
GASB 68 pension adjustment			51,678		
NET POSITION - End of year			\$ 562,639		

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES - FIDUCIARY FUNDS YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

GO VIRGINIA REGIONAL COUNCIL 3	Balance Beginning of Year	Additions	Deletions	Balance End of Year
ASSETS Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 41,122	\$ 1,509,582	\$ 1,484,141	\$ 66,563
LIABILITIES Amount held for others	\$ 41,122	\$ 1,509,582	\$ 1,484,141	\$ 66,563

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE COMMISSION'S NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30,

		2023		2022		2021		2020		2019		2018		2017		2016		2015		2014
Total Pension Liability		N1150	5	12.000	7	13.5727	-	30%	7	Date	7	200.000	21	6.635.1	7	- CONCE		JT 75-10	-	Yahaan
Service Cost	\$	49,044	5	46,151	\$	47,090	\$	48,044	\$	45,896	5	38,098	5	45,474	5	42,499	\$	46,077	5	45,495
Interest on total pension liability		286,931		279,745		249,096		248,533		243,679		234,461		228,653		221,928		212,995		202,971
Differences between expected and actual		0.0002		TOWNSTAN		930-03L v		200		harasa '		400400		000000		0000000		240 4000		
experience		69,412		(41,313)		144,187		(10,650)		46,850		(8,475)		(63,621)		(57,581)		(24,561)		5.
Changes in assumptions				3		144,382				115,212		140		752		-		-		-
Benefit payments, including refunds of		المسائدة						0.000.000		- 3,00,400				1,74,000,0		ಾರ್ಯದಿ ಬಿ.ಎ.		2000000		Service.
employee contributions	_	(183,981)	_	(178,047)	_	(175,661)	_	(379,519)	_	(122,059)	_	(142,751)	_	(113,803)	_	(107,753)	_	(106,035)	_	(104,509)
Net change in total pension liability		221,406		106,536		409,094		(93,592)		329,578		121,333		97,455		99,093		128,476		143,957
Total pension liability - beginning		4,293,772	_	4,187,236	-	3,778,142	_	3,871,734	_	3,542,156	_	3,420,823	_	3,323,368		3,224,275		3,095,799	_	2,951,842
Total pension liability - ending (a)	\$	4,515,178		4,293,772	\$	4,187,236	5	3,778,142	\$	3,871,734	\$	3,542,156	5	3,420,823	5	3,323,368	5	3,224,275	\$	3,095,799
Plan fiduciary net position																				
Contributions - employer	\$	111,160	5	79,461	S	74,506	S	70,141	\$	81,938	5	74,691	\$	73,194	S	74.782	S	77,575	5	75,698
Contributions - employee		26,845		25,643		24,015		22,727		26,322		24,463		24,077		23,986		24,867		25,300
Net investment income		207,417		(3,432)		718,109		49,606		183,322		189,197		282,851		40,085		100,931		300,098
Benefits payments, including refunds of				1400																
employee contributions		(183,981)		(178,047)		(175,661)		(379,519)		(122,059)		(142,751)		(113,803)		(107,753)		(106,035)		(104,509)
Administrative expense		(2,060)		(2,060)		(1,811)		(1,959)		(1,775)		(1,635)		(1,617)		(1,411)		(1,364)		(1.606)
Other		84		76		68		(60)		(115)		(388)		(529)		(17)		(21)		16
Net change in plan fiduciary net position		159,465		(78,359)		639,226		(239,064)		167,633		143,577		264.173		29,672		95,953		294,997
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning		3,214,911		3,293,270		2,654,044		2,893,108		2,725,475		2,581,898		2,317,725		2,288,053		2,192,100		1,897,103
Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b)	S	3,374,376	S	3,214,911	\$	3,293,270	\$	2,654,044	\$	2,893,108	\$	2,725,475	\$	2,581,898	\$	2,317,725	S	2,288,053	\$	2,192,100
Commission's Net Pension Liability - Ending																				
(a)-(b)	S	1,140,802	\$	1,078,861	S	893,966	\$	1,124,098	5	978,626	\$	816,681	\$	838,925	5	1,005,643	\$	936,222	\$	903,699
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of																				
the total pension liability		74.73%		74.87° a		78.65%		70.25%		74.72%		76.94%		75.48%		69.74%		70.96%		70.81%
Covered - employee payroll	\$	527,606	\$	445_937	s	410,693	\$	443,000	\$	501,800	5	521,305	\$	452,931	\$	476,610	\$	468,800	\$	501,200
Commission's net pension liability as percentage of covered-employee payroll		216,22%		241.93%		217.67%		253.75%		195.02%		156,66%		185.22%		211.00%		199,71%		180,31%

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 THROUGH 2024

Date	R	ntractually Required atributions	in I Con	ntributions Relation to ntractually Required ntributions	D	ntribution eficiency (Excess)	(mployer's Covered Payroll	Contributions as a % of Covered Payroll		
2024	\$	105,374	\$	128,705	S	(23,331)	\$	513,769	25.05%		
2023	\$	108,212	\$	110,810	\$	(2,598)	\$	527,606	21.00%		
2022	\$	68,228	\$	79,461	\$	(11,233)	\$	445,937	17.82%		
2021	\$	62,836	\$	74,506	\$	(11,670)	\$	410,693	18.14%		
2020	\$	64,944	\$	70,141	\$	(5,197)	\$	443,000	15.83%		
2019	\$	75,722	\$	81,938	\$	(6,216)	\$	501,800	16.33%		
2018	\$	79,238	\$	74,691	\$	4,547	\$	521,305	14.33%		
2017	\$	68,846	\$	73,194	\$	(4,348)	\$	452,931	16.16%		
2016	\$	74,589	\$	74,782	\$	(193)	\$	476,610	15.69%		
2015	\$	73,367	\$	77,575	\$	(4,208)	\$	468,800	16.55%		

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

NOTE 1 - Change of Benefit Terms

There have been no actuarially material changes to the System benefit provisions since the prior actuarial valuation.

NOTE 2 - Changes of Assumptions

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2022 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience study for the period from July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2020, except the change in the discount rate, which was based on VRS Board action effective as of July 1, 2021. Changes to the actuarial assumptions as a result of the experience study are as follows:

Largest 10 - Non-Hazardous Duty:

Mortality Rates (Pre-retirement, post-retirement healthy, and disabled	Update to PUB2010 public sector mortality tables. For future mortality improvements, replace load with a modified Mortality Improvement Scale MP-2020
Retirement Rates	Adjusted rates better fit experience for Plan 1; set separate rates based on experience for Plan 2/Hybrid; changed final retirement age
Withdrawal Rates	Adjusted rates to better fit experience at each year age and service through 9 years of service
Disability Rates	No change
Salary Scale	No change
Line of Duty Disability	No change
Discount Rate	No change

All Others (Non 10 Largest) - Non-Hazardous Duty:

Mortality Rates (Pre-retirement, post-retirement healthy, and disabled	Update to PUB2010 public sector mortality tables. For future mortality improvements, replace load with a modified Mortality Improvement Scale MP-2020
Retirement Rates	Adjusted rates better fit experience for Plan 1; set separate rates based on experience for Plan 2/Hybrid; changed final retirement age
Withdrawal Rates	Adjusted rates to better fit experience at each year age and service through 9 years of service
Disability Rates	No change
Salary Scale	No change
Line of Duty Disability	No change
Discount Rate	No change

SOUTHSIDE PLANNING DISTRICT COMMISSION SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS JUNE 30, 2024

FEDERAL ASSISTANCE LISTING	EXP	ENDITURES
21,027	•	4710 212
21.027	2	4,710,212
20.205		57,995
nagement		
512-VA-0006 97.039		4,464
90.705		11,156
39		1.000
20074 11.302		70,000
	\$	4,853,827
	ASSISTANCE LISTING 21.027 20.205 nagement 512-VA-0006 97.039 90.705	ASSISTANCE LISTING EXP 21.027 \$ 20.205 nagement 512-VA-0006 97.039 90.705

NOTE 1 - Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of the Southside Planning District Commission. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts in, or used in the preparation of the basic financial statements.

NOTE 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Expenditures reported on the schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Costs Principals, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

NOTE 3 - Indirect Cost Rate

The Southside Planning District Commission has elected not to use the 10% de minimus indirect cost rate allowed under Uniform Guidance.

Dunham, Aukamp & Rhodes, PLC

Certified Public Accountants

4443 Brookfield Corporate Drive, Suite 110 Chantilly, VA 20151

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Commissioners Southside Planning District Commission:

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards*, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the *Specifications for Audits of Authorities*, *Boards, and Commissions*, issued by the Auditor of Public Accounts of the Commonwealth of Virginia, the financial statements of governmental activities, fiduciary activities and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Southside Planning District Commission as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Southside Planning District Commission's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated March 25, 2025.

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Southside Planning District Commission's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Southside Planning District Commission's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Southside Planning District Commission's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Phone: (703) 631-8940 FAX: (703) 631-8939

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Southside Planning District Commission's financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under *Government Auditing Standards*.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Certified Public Accountants

Dunker, And a Meder, AC

Chantilly, Virginia

March 25, 2025

Dunham, Aukamp & Rhodes, PLC

Certified Public Accountants

4443 Brookfield Corporate Drive, Suite 110 Chantilly, VA 20151

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Commissioners Southside Planning District Commission:

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the Southside Planning District Commission's compliance with the types of compliance requirements identified as subject to audit in the *OMB Compliance Supplement* that could have a direct and material effect on each of the Southside Planning District Commission's major federal program for the year ended June 30, 2024. Southside Planning District Commission's major federal program is identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion, the Southside Planning District Commission complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2024.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; the Specifications for Audits of Authorities, Boards, and Commissions, issued by the Auditor of Public Accounts of the Commonwealth of Virginia; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responses under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of Southside Planning District Commission and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of Southside Planning District Commission's compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of effective internal controls over compliance with the requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to Southside Planning District Commission's federal programs.

Phone: (703) 631-8940 FAX: (703) 631-8939

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion on Southside Planning District Commission's compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, and Uniform Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgement made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about Southside Planning District Commission's compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Government Auditing Standards, and Uniform Guidance, we:

- Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
- Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding Southside Planning District Commission's compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as we consider necessary in the circumstances.
- Obtain an understanding of Southside Planning District Commission's internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion of the effectiveness of Southside Planning District Commission's internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

unlin, Julys 9 Meder, MC

Certified Public Accountants

Chantilly, Virginia

March 25, 2025

SOUTHSIDE PLANNING DISTRICT COMMISSION SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Section I - Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements Type of report the auditor issued on whether the fi	nancial statements audited		
were prepared in accordance with GAAP:			Unmodified
Internal control over financial reporting			
- Material weakness(es) identified	-	Yes	_X_No
- Significant deficiency(ies) identified	C	Yes	X None Reported
Noncompliance material to financial statements no	oted?	Yes	XNo
Federal Awards Internal control over major programs:			
- Material weakness(es) identified	-	Yes	_X_No
- Significant deficiency(ies) identified		Yes	X None Reported
Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for	major programs:		Unmodified
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be in accordance with 2 CFR section 200.516(a)?	e reported	Yes	_X_No
Identification of major programs			
CFDA Number	Name of Federal Program or Cluster		
21.027	Coronavirus State a	nd Local Fi	scal Recovery Funds
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type	A and type B programs:	\$75	0,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?	ri iri	Yes	X No
Section II – Fina No matters were reported	ncial Statement Finding		
Section III – F No matters were reported	ederal Award Findings		